
 CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS  

 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD MEETING 

321 WALNUT STREET, GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 28, 2021 – 5:00 PM 

AGENDA 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

ANYONE WISHING TO ADDRESS THE PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD REGARDING ANY 

TOPIC ON THIS EVENING’S AGENDA IS REQUESTED TO COMPLETE A CARD AVAILABLE 

AT THE CLERK’S DESK. SPEAKERS ARE RESPECTFULLY REQUESTED TO LIMIT THEIR 

COMMENTS TO THREE (3) MINUTES. 

THE PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD PROHIBITS THE USE OF CELL PHONES AND PAGES 

WHICH EMIT AN AUDIBLE SOUND DURING ALL MEETINGS WITH THE EXCEPTION OF LAW 

ENFORCEMENT, FIRE AND RESCUE, OR HEALTH CARE PROFESSIONALS ON CALL. 

PERSONS IN VIOLATION WILL BE REQUESTED TO LEAVE THE MEETING. 

THIS WILL BE AN IN-PERSON MEETING. PLEASE FOLLOW SOCIAL DISTANCING 

PROTOCOLS 

ROLL CALL 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Review and approval of the meeting minutes for August 24, 2021. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

2. Review of a Future Land Use and Zoning Amendment for property located at 518 Pine Avenue 

for approximately .433 acres. 

Future Land Use Amendment:  

from: Commercial High Intensity 

to: Institutional  

Zoning Amendment:  

from: C-2, General Commercial  

to: Institutional 

 

3. Special Exception Request for the Development an Emergency Shelter on property located at 

518 N Pine Avenue 

Page 1



September 28, 2021 Agenda Page 2 of 2 

 

 

ACTION ITEMS 

BOARD BUSINESS 

4. Potential Development Moratorium Discussion 

BOARD DISCUSSION / COMMENTS 

STAFF COMMENTS 

ADJOURNMENT  

NEXT MEETING: TUESDAY, OCTOBER 26, 2021 AT 5:00PM 

 

Minutes of the Planning & Zoning Board Meeting can be obtained from the City Clerk’s office. The 

Minutes are recorded, but are not transcribed verbatim.  

Persons requiring a verbatim transcript may make arrangements with the City Clerk to duplicate the 

recordings, or arrange to have a court reporter present at the meeting. The cost of duplication and/or court 

reporter will be at the expense of the requesting party. 

ADA NOTICE  

In accordance with Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons with disabilities needing special 

accommodations to participate in this meeting should contact the City Clerk’s office no later than 5:00 

p.m. on the day prior to the meeting. 

EXPARTE COMMUNICATIONS 

Oral or written exchanges (sometimes referred to as lobbying or information gathering) between a Special 

Magistrate and others, including staff, where there is a substantive discussion regarding a quasi-judicial 

decision by the Special Magistrate. The exchanges must be disclosed by the Special Magistrate 

 

Page 2



 CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS  

 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD MEETING 

321 WALNUT STREET, GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TUESDAY, AUGUST 24, 2021 – 5:00 PM 

MINUTES 

ROLL CALL 

PRESENT 
Chairman Henrietta Francis 

Board Member Brian Cook 

Board Member Justin Hall 

 

ABSENT 
Vice Chair Gary Luke 

Board Member Richard Hobbs 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Review and approval of minutes from the June 22, 2021 and July 27, 2021 meetings. 

Motion to approve the minutes from the June 22, 2021 and July 27, 2021 meetings. 

Motion made by Board Member Hall, Seconded by Board Member Cook. Voting Yea: 

Chairman Francis, Board Member Cook, Board Member Hall 

Motion passes 3-0. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

2. Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment and Rezoning Request for property located in the 

1300 Block of Energy Cove Court for approximately 9.4 acres. 

Future Land Use Amendment:  

from: Mixed Use Highway 

to: Residential High Density  

Zoning Amendment:  

from: C-2, General Commercial and M-2, Industrial 

to: R-3, Residential High Density 

 

Page 3

Item #  1.



August 24, 2021 Minutes Page 2 of 4 

 

 

Mr. Daniels presented the application. Staff recommend approval of the future land use 

amendment and rezoning. 

Chairman Francis opened the public hearing. 

Gregory Stepp, 1293 Energy Cove Ct, asked how traffic being directed to Cooks Lane would 

be enforced given the opening shown onto Energy Cove. Mr. Daniels explained that the sketch 

shown is not a final site plan, but only a sketch. Mr. Daniels assured notice would be sent 

when the site development plan is taken before the board. He explained the Energy Cove 

entrance would be a stabilized surface, not a full ingress/egress. Mr. Stepp inquired how many 

units. Mr. Daniels explained the maximum density is 112 units. 

Jim Buck, Hayes Trust, 1315 Energy Cove Ct, inquired about the stabilized surface onto 

Energy Cove Ct. He also asked if the developer would have to pay the proportionate fee 

Energy Cove developers pay, which Mr. Daniels indicated they would. He then asked what is 

happening to the south of Energy Cove Ct, which Mr. Daniels explained the Ayrshire 

Development is proposing a connection from their development to US 17. 

Ryan Haney, 1325 Energy Cove Ct, inquired who makes the decision about the project, which 

is Planning & Zoning making a recommendation and City Council making the final decision 

after two hearings. Mr. Haney inquired if the Energy Cove entrance would be gated / locked. 

At this stage, it is unclear. Mr. Haney then mentioned he is concerned about crime. Mr. Haney 

expressed he's not opposed to development on Cooks Lane, but he would prefer two or three 

acres along Energy Cove remaining industrial. 

Steve Chastain, property owner on Energy Cove Ct, expressed disappointment that the 

industrial area is being changed, reducing the amount of industrial space. He added the 

development should be sealed off from the industrial area. 

Greg Stepp spoke again to express agreement with Mr. Chastain. He indicated people may 

walk from their properties to Energy Cove Ct, and he is concerned about vandalism and crime. 

Chairman Francis closed the public hearing.  

Chairman Francis called for comments from the board. 

Board Member (BM) Hall expressed he expected the residential properties nearby would be 

concerned, as opposed to the business owners on Energy Cove Ct. He supports making the 

proposed Energy Cove entrance emergency access only. Originally, he had thought Energy 

Cove would be the best primary entrance given the state of Cooks Lane. Mr. Daniels explained 

that going on Cooks Lane provides access to a signalized intersection, while Energy Cove Ct 

does not.  

Chairman Francis reopened the public hearing. 

Mr. Chastain explained there are trucks regularly loading / unloading and forklifts moving 

equipment, which poses a risk to residential traffic. 

Chairman Francis closed the public hearing. 

Page 4

Item #  1.



August 24, 2021 Minutes Page 3 of 4 

 

 

Board Member (BM) Cook expressed concern about this additional traffic plus the additional 

traffic being added by the Ayrshire development. He asked what can be done to alleviate the 

traffic issues and proposed impacts on 16 and 17. Mr. Daniels explained the plan as it relates 

to the Ayrshire development and how this development, when it is at the stage of a site 

development plan, will have to include the impact of Ayrshire in their traffic study. 

BM Cook discussed including a recommendation for Council to review the concern of the 

Energy Cove Ct entrance. 

BM Cook requested Mr. Daniels explain why staff is recommending approval. Mr. Daniels 

explained the proposed use is compatible on the Cooks Lane side and is potentially a good 

development for the city's multi-modal goals. Additionally, the City has a housing shortage, 

particularly a shortage on multi-family housing. 

BM Hall noted the site plan would be more definitive regarding landscaping, buffering, 

fencing, et cetera. 

Motion to recommend approval O-15-2021. 

Motion made by Board Member Cook, Seconded by Board Member Hall. Voting Yea: 

Chairman Francis, Board Member Cook, Board Member Hall.  

Motion passes 3-0. 

Chairman Francis opened the public hearing for the rezoning application. 

Mr. Stepp came forward to discuss the intersection of 16 and 17. He mentioned when the 

Buckman Bridge closes, it becomes a mess. He also feels the Shands Bridge is already maxed 

out on traffic at the 16 and 17 intersection. 

Mr. Haney asked about the next steps for the project. Mr. Daniels offered to set up a meeting 

between businesses at Energy Cove Ct and the applicant to discuss their concerns. 

Chairman Francis closed the public hearing. 

Motion to recommend approval of O-16-2021. 

Motion made by Board Member Hall, Seconded by Board Member Cook. Voting Yea: 

Chairman Francis, Board Member Cook, Board Member Hall.  

Motion passes 3-0. 

Motion to recommend City Council strongly consider restricting traffic from the development 

onto Energy Cove to emergency vehicles. 

Motion made by Board Member Cook, Seconded by Board Member Hall. Voting Yea: 

Chairman Francis, Board Member Cook, Board Member Hall.  Motion passes 3-0. 

 

Page 5

Item #  1.



August 24, 2021 Minutes Page 4 of 4 

 

 

BOARD BUSINESS 

BOARD DISCUSSION / COMMENTS 

Chairman Francis commended Ms. Glisson on the July minutes. 

STAFF COMMENTS 

Mr. Daniels reminded the Board that there is a meeting Thursday where there will be a roundtable 

discussion about the comprehensive plan update. BM Cook had recommended to Mr. Daniels prior 

to the meeting that questions be held until the end of the joint meeting. 

Mr. Daniels asked if the Board had also received Greening Green Cove Springs, which they did. 

BM Cook asked what Mr. Daniels hopes to get from the joint meeting. He explained the meeting 

is a workshop and he hopes to reach agreement on the priorities for the City. 

ADJOURNMENT  

Meeting adjourned at 5:57pm. 

 

 CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

 
 

 Henrietta Francis, Chairman 

  

Attest:  

 
 

Heather Glisson, Planning & Zoning Clerk  

 

Page 6

Item #  1.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA  

TO:  Planning and Zoning Commission MEETING DATE: September 28, 2021 

FROM: Michael Daniels, AICP, Planning & Zoning Director 

SUBJECT: Review of a Future Land Use and Zoning Amendment for property located at 518 Pine 

Avenue for approximately .433 acres. 

 

Future Land Use Amendment:     from:  Commercial High Intensity 

                                                      to:   Institutional  

Zoning Amendment:                     from:  C-2, General Commercial  

                                                      to:     Institutional 

 
 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

APPLICANT: John Sanders OWNER: The Vineyard 

PROPERTY LOCATION: 518 Pine Avenue 

PARCEL NUMBER: 017636-000-00 

FILE NUMBER: FLUS-21-0004  & ZON-21-0004  

CURRENT ZONING:  C-2, General Commercial  

FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION: Commercial High Intensity 

SURROUNDING LAND USE 

NORTH: FLU: Commercial High Intensity 

(CHI) 

Z: C-2 

Use: Single Family Residential 

SOUTH: FLU: CHI 

Z: C-2 

Use: Church 

EAST: 
FLU: Commercial Medium 

Intensity (CMI) 

Z: Gateway Corridor 

Neighborhood (GCN)  

Use: Undeveloped 

WEST: FLU: CHI 

Z: C-2Use: Undeveloped  

  

Page 7

Item #  2.



BACKGROUND 

The applicant has applied for a Small-Scale Future Land Use and Zoning change for the subject property.  

A companion application and staff report for a special exception for an emergency shelter has been 

submitted as well.   

 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

The property has two dilapidated structures that are currently boarded and in disrepair.  The site is sparsely 

wooded with hardwood trees to the east of the property and a palm tree between the building and the road.   

There is a concrete wall and concrete pavement area on the north side of the building and two septic tanks 

to the rear of the buildings which are no longer in use.   

   

NEEDS ANALYSIS  

Per Chapter 163.3177, Florida Statutes, need shall be based upon the amount of land designated for future 

uses and shall:  

 1) Provide a balance of uses that foster vibrant, viable communities and economic opportunities and 

address outdated development patterns, such as antiquated subdivisions; and,  

2) Allow the operation of real estate markets to provide adequate choices for residents and business, with 

the amount of land designated for future use not limited solely by the projected population. The minimum 

amount of land use required to accommodate at least a 10-year planning period must be included in the 

comprehensive plan.  

Comment: Amending the land use of this property to Institutional will increase opportunities to provide 

a variety of uses of public necessity within the City.   

URBAN SPRAWL ANALYSIS  

Section 163.3177, Florida Statutes, requires that any amendment to the Future Land Use Element to 

discourage the proliferation of urban sprawl. Section 163.3177(6)(a)9.a., Florida Statutes, identifies 13 

primary urban sprawl indicators and states that, “[t]he evaluation of the presence of these indicators shall 

consist of an analysis of the plan or plan amendment within the context of features and characteristics 

unique to each locality…”   

An evaluation of each primary indicator is provided below.   

(I) Promotes, allows, or designates for development substantial areas of the jurisdiction to develop as low-

intensity, low-density, or single-use development or uses.  

Evaluation & Findings: The proposed amendment will revise the FLUM designation from CHI to INS.  

By revising the Future Land Use designation to INS, it will allow for a variety of predominantly non- 

residential uses, but shall allow as a special exception temporary transitional housing as part of an 

emergency shelter.  This will allow the City to provide for a wider variety of housing types than what is 

currently available in the City.     

(II) Promotes, allows, or designates significant amounts of urban development to occur in rural areas at 

substantial distances from existing urban areas while not using undeveloped lands that are available and 

suitable for development.  

Page 8

Item #  2.



Evaluation & Findings: The project site is located within the central core area of Green Cove Springs 

and adds to the existing development in the area which is suitable for developing thereby reducing 

development pressure in rural and unincorporated areas.   

(III) Promotes, allows, or designates urban development in radial, strip, isolated, or ribbon patterns 

generally emanating from existing urban developments.   

Evaluation & Findings: The proposed INS Future Land Use designation is compatible with the 

surrounding development and removes the potential for high intensity commercial uses on a small 

neighborhood street. 

(IV) Fails to adequately protect and conserve natural resources, such as wetlands, floodplains, native 

vegetation, environmentally sensitive areas, natural groundwater aquifer recharge areas, lakes, rivers, 

shorelines, beaches, bays, estuarine systems, and other significant natural systems.  

Evaluation & Findings: The site is not located within a floodplain and does not have significant native 

vegetation, environmentally sensitive areas, natural groundwater aquifer recharge areas, lakes, shorelines, 

beaches, bays, estuarine systems, and other significant natural systems.  

(V) Fails to adequately protect adjacent agricultural areas and activities, including silviculture, active 

agricultural and silvicultural activities, passive agricultural activities, and dormant, unique, and prime 

farmlands and soils.  

Evaluation & Findings: The project site is located within an urban area with surrounding residential and 

non-residential development. There are no adjacent agricultural areas and activities.  

(VI) Fails to maximize use of existing public facilities and services.  

Evaluation & Findings: With the project site being located within an area with existing development, 

proposed development on the property will utilize existing public facilities and services. 

(VII) Fails to maximize use of future public facilities and services.  

Evaluation & Findings: Any future improvements to the City’s public facilities and services will be 

utilized by the project site.  The existing Septic Tanks located on site shall be disposed of per County 

Health Department Standards. 

(VIII) Allows for land use patterns or timing which disproportionately increase the cost in time, money, 

and energy of providing and maintaining facilities and services, including roads, potable water, sanitary 

sewer, stormwater management, law enforcement, education, health care, fire and emergency response, 

and general government.  

Evaluation & Findings: Due to the size and uses allowed, the project site is located within an existing 

developed area with existing public facilities and services. The proposed development will utilize existing 

public facilities and services and will not increase the time, money, and energy for providing and 

maintaining these facilities. 

(IX) Fails to provide a clear separation between rural and urban uses.  

Evaluation & Findings: The site is located within an urban area and is not adjacent to any rural zoned 

properties. 

(X) Discourages or inhibits infill development or the redevelopment of existing neighborhoods and 

communities. 

Evaluation & Findings: The proposed application will allow infill development on a developed site. 

(XI) Fails to encourage a functional mix of uses.  

Page 9

Item #  2.



Evaluation & Findings: The project site will provide for institutional uses of public necessity in close 

proximity to residential uses.  The project site will be required to meet all mitigation requirements as part 

of the development plan process to ensure compatibility with surrounding properties. 

(XII) Results in poor accessibility among linked or related land uses.  

Evaluation & Findings: The project site shall comply with all access requirements pursuant to the City 

LDC.   

(XIII) Results in the loss of significant amounts of functional open space.  

Evaluation & Findings: Additional proposed development shall comply with all landscaping and open 

space as required by the City LDC. 

In addition to the preceding urban sprawl indicators, Florida Statutes Section 163.3177 also establishes 

eight (8) “Urban Form” criteria. An amendment to the Future Land Use Map is presumed to not be 

considered urban sprawl if it meets four (4) of the (8) urban form criteria. These urban form criteria, and 

an evaluation of each as each may relate to this application, are provided below. The applicant has 

provided an analysis of the application’s consistency with Section 163.3177 within the application 

materials, and contends that the proposed amendment will not encourage urban sprawl by showing it meets 

four of the eight urban form criteria.   

1. Directs or locates economic growth and associated land development to geographic areas of the 

community in a manner that does not have an adverse impact on and protects natural resources and 

ecosystems.  

Evaluation & Findings: The project site is located within an existing developed area thereby relieving 

growth pressures of growing in undeveloped areas, which have the potential for a bigger impact on our 

natural resources and ecosystems.   

2. Promotes the efficient and cost-effective provision or extension of public infrastructure and services.  

Evaluation & Findings: This application, is located within a developed area and will utilize existing 

public infrastructure and services. 

3. Promotes walkable and connected communities and provides for compact development and a mix of 

uses at densities and intensities that will support a range of housing choices and a multimodal 

transportation system, including pedestrian, bicycle, and transit, if available.  

Evaluation & Findings: This application will provide a developed site in close proximity to the 

downtown core, promoting walkability. 

4. Promotes conservation of water and energy.  

Evaluation & Findings: The project site is located within an urban area with surrounding commercial 

development. Development in core urban areas reduces the pressure to develop in areas further outside of 

the urban areas. 

5. Preserves agricultural areas and activities, including silviculture, and dormant, unique, and prime 

farmlands and soils.  

Evaluation & Findings: The project site is located within an urban area with surrounding development. 

There are no adjacent agricultural areas and activities.  Development in core urban areas reduces the 

pressure to develop in agricultural areas. 

6. Preserves open space and natural lands and provides for public open space and recreation needs.  

Evaluation & Findings: N/A   

Page 10

Item #  2.



7. Creates a balance of land uses based upon demands of the residential population for the nonresidential 

needs of an area.  

Evaluation & Findings: The proposed site is located within close proximity to a variety of residential 

and nonresidential uses. The proposed development will provide a balance of land uses to the area. 

8. Provides uses, densities, and intensities of use and urban form that would remediate an existing or 

planned development pattern in the vicinity that constitutes sprawl or if it provides for an innovative 

development pattern such as transit-oriented developments or new towns as defined in s. 163.3164.  

Evaluation & Findings: N/A   

 

CONSISTENCY WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

The following Goals, Objectives, and Policies (GOPs) support the proposed amendment to the Future 

Land Use Map of the City of Green Cove Springs Comprehensive Plan: 

FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT 

Goal 1: To develop and maintain land use programs and activities to provide for the most appropriate use 

of the land and direct growth to suitable areas while protecting the public, health, safety and welfare. 

Objective 1.2: The City shall assure that future land uses have essential facilities and services which meet 

locally established levels of service (LOS) standards and adopted as part of the Capital Improvements 

Element (CIE).   

Policies 1.2.1: The City shall ensure that development orders are conditioned upon the provision of 

essential facilities and services which meet the established level of service standards and necessary to 

serve the proposed development by reviewing each site plan/development proposal to ensure compliance 

with concurrency and do not go beyond LOS threshold.   

Objective 1.3:  The City shall take definitive steps for the redevelopment and renewal of blighted areas 

within the City. 

 TRANSPORTATION ELEMENT 

Objective 2.8 Site Development Traffic Circulation: The City shall require that all major developments 

and planned unit developments provide a circulation system which: provides adequate access to the major 

roadway network; provides for sound design of local and collector streets within such development…. 

HOUSING ELEMENT 

Objective 3.3 Adequate Sites for Affordable Housing  The City shall assure that adequate sites are 

provided for affordable housing such as multi-family structures and manufactured and modular housing 

units.   

Policies  3.3.1 The land development regulations shall allow for the development of a variety of housing 

types in areas of residential character with densities consistent with the Future Land Use Map. 

Objective 3.4 Adequate Sites for Special Residential Facilities  The City shall assure the provision of 

housing to all citizens of the City including those with special needs.   

Policies  3.4.1 The land development regulations shall include provisions that support the location of 

foster care facilities, group homes, child/adolescent care facilities, and retirement homes into areas of 

residential character, which shall consider infrastructure availability, convenience, and accessibility.   

Page 11

Item #  2.



SANITARY SEWER, SOLID WASTE, DRAINAGE, POTABLE WATER, AND AQUIFER 

RECHARGE ELEMENT 

Objective 4.6: Future development shall be required to connect with central sewer and water systems and 

provide drainage facilities which maximize the use of existing facilities and discourage urban sprawl. 

 

FUTURE LAND USE AND ZONING DISTRICT COMPARISON 

The existing Future Land Use District is Commercial, High Intensity.  This category consists of a wide 

array of commercial uses, such as hotels, motels, automobile sales, service and repair, housing above 

businesses, churches and others. The maximum Floor Area Ratio shall be .40.   

 

The existing zoning district is C-2, General Business.  The commercial high intensity (CHI), C-2 

general commercial zoning category district is intended for intensive commercial uses which generally 

require a conspicuous and accessible location convenient to streets carrying large volumes of traffic.  

 

The proposed Future Land Use District is Institutional.  This category consists of civic, cultural, 

government, religious, utilities, and other public necessity uses.  The maximum Floor Area Ratio is .30.  

 

The proposed zoning district is Institutional.  The institutional land use category consists of civic, 

cultural, governmental, religious, public utilities, and other public necessity uses.   

PUBLIC FACILITIES IMPACT  

Traffic Impacts 

Land Use1 
Units 

Daily AM Peak PM Peak 

(ITE) Rate Trips Rate Trips Rate Trips 

Maximum Development Potential Based on  Existing FLU  

Convenience Store, 24 
hours (ITE 851) 

7,544 sf 737.99 5,535 67.03 503 52.41 393 

        

 

Land Use1 
Units 

Daily AM Peak PM Peak 

(ITE) Rate Trips Rate Trips Rate Trips 

Proposed 

Hospital (ITE 610) 5,658 sf 16.5 94 0.95 5 1.14 6 

        

1. Source: Institute of Transportation Engineers: Trip Generation Manual 8th Edition 

 

Conclusion: The proposed Institutional land use and zoning could have a medical facility such as a 

small hospital / emergency room, as its most intense use. Meanwhile, the existing zoning of C-2 permits 

convenience stores. The proposed zoning incurs smaller traffic impacts than the existing zoning.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 12

Item #  2.



Potable Water Impacts 

System Category Gallons Per Day (GPD) 

Current Permitted Capacity1 4,032,000 

Less actual Potable Water Flows1 1,029,000 

Residual Capacity1 3,003,000 

Projected Potable Water Demand from Proposed Project2                        1,200 

Residual Capacity after Proposed Project 3,001,800 
1. Source: City of Green Cove Springs Public Works Department 
2. Source: City of Green Cove Springs Comprehensive Plan. Formula Used: 8 units x 1 persons per unit x 150 gal per person  

 
Sanitary Sewer Impacts – Harbor Road WWTP 

System Category Gallons Per Day (GPD) 

Current Permitted Capacity1 650,000 

Current Loading1 516,000 

Committed Loading 1 92,000 

Residual Capacity1 42,000 

Percentage of Permitted Design Capacity Utilized1 93% 

Projected Potable Water Demand from Proposed Project2 960 

Residual Capacity after Proposed Project 41,040 
1. Source: City of Green Cove Springs Public Works Department August 2021 Report to Council 
2. Source: City of Green Cove Springs Comprehensive Plan. Formula Used: 8 units x 1 persons per unit x 120 gal per person 

 
Conclusion: The project site is served by the Harbor Road Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP).  As shown in 

the table above, when factoring in the current loading and the committed loading, this WWTP has the capacity to 

handle the estimated impacts resulting from the proposed application. 

 

Solid Waste Impacts 

System Category LBs Per Day / Tons per Year 

Solid Waste Generated by Proposed Project1 64 lbs. / 23.36 tons 

Solid Waste Facility Capacity2 Minimum 3 Years Capacity 
1. Source: City of Green Cove Springs Comprehensive Plan. Formula Used: (8 dwelling units x 1 persons per dwelling unit x 8 lbs. 

per day) x 365 
2. Source: Clay County Comprehensive Plan 

 
Conclusion:  The City of Green Cove Springs’ solid waste is disposed of at the Rosemary Hill Solid Waste 

Management Facility operated by Clay County.  Per the Clay County Comprehensive Plan, a minimum of three 

(3) years capacity shall be maintained at the County’s solid waste management facility.  The estimated impacts 

from the proposed Project are not expected to negatively impact the City’s adopted LOS or exceed the County 

solid waste management facility’s capacity. 

 

Page 13

Item #  2.



Public School Facilities Impact 

Land Use 
Units 

Elem. Middle High 

 Rate1 Total Rate1 Total Rate1 Total 

Proposed 

Multifamily 
Units 
 

8 0.0314 1 0.0095 1 0.0197 1 

Net 
Generation 

- - 1 - 1 - 1 

1. Source: School District of Clay County, Educational Facilities Plan, FY 2020/21-2024/25, based on multifamily 
 
Conclusion: The School District of Clay County will make a school capacity determination at the time of Final 

Site Development Plan.  It is not anticipated that the estimated number of students generated by the proposed 

PUD rezoning will exceed the adopted LOS standards 

 

STAFF COMMENTS  

Redeveloping the property in conformance with the requirements of the Institutional Future Land Use and 

Zoning Districts will allow for the development of civic, cultural, government, religious and other uses of 

public necessity.  The proposed Institutional Future Land Use Designation and Zoning District provide a 

more compatible transition from the traffic intensive commercial district to the south and east to the 

predominantly single-family homes to the north of the subject property.   The Institutional Zoning District 

does allow for the development of an Emergency Shelter to provide for  transitional housing.  Section 

117-796 of the City Code provides specific regulations that must be addressed in order to ensure 

compatibility with the surrounding neighborhood.  These requirements are reviewed and evaluated as part 

of the companion application (SE21-0001)    

Attachments include: 

1. Ordinance O-17-2021 

2. Ordinance O-18-2021 

3. FLUM Application 

4. Rezoning Application  

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends approval of the future land use amendment and rezoning. 

RECOMMENDED MOTIONS: 

Future Land Use Amendment 

Motion to recommend to City Council the approval of Ordinance O-17-2021, to amend the Future Land 

Use of the property described therein from Commercial High Intensity to Institutional. 

Rezoning 

Motion to recommend to City Council the approval of Ordinance O-18-2021, to amend the Zoning of the 

property described therein from C-2 General Commercial to Institutional. 

 

Page 14

Item #  2.



ORDINANCE NO. O-18-2021 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, 

FLORIDA REZONING ±0.433 ACRES OF PROPERTY LOCATED AT 518 

N PINE AVE, IDENTIFIED AS TAX ID NUMBERS 017656-000-00 AND 

017659-000-00, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY EXHIBIT “A”, 

FROM C-2 GENERAL COMMERCIAL TO INSTITUTIONAL; 

PROVIDING FOR REPEALER, SEVERABILITY AND SETTING AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the City has received a request to amend the Future Land Use Map for the 

subject parcel from Commercial High Intensity to Institutional; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City approved the Future Land Use Map amendment for the subject 

property such that it will be designated as Institutional on the Future Land Use Map of the City, 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has received a request to rezone the subject parcel from C-2 General 

Commercial, to Institutional; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has the authority pursuant to its home rule and other statutory powers 

to rezone properties within the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a duly advertised public hearing was conducted on the proposed rezoning on 

September 28, 2021 by the Planning and Zoning Board, sitting as the Local Planning Agency 

(LPA), and the LPA reviewed and considered comments received during the public hearing 

concerning the application and made its recommendation for approval to the City Council; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council considered the recommendations of the LPA at a duly 

advertised public hearing on October 5, 2021 and October 19, 2021 and provided for and received 

public participation; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined and found said application for the 

amendment, to be consistent with the City of Green Cove Springs Comprehensive Plan and Land 

Development Regulations; and, 

 

WHEREAS, for reasons set forth in this Ordinance that is hereby adopted and incorporated 

as findings of fact, that the Green Cove Springs City Council finds and declares that the enactment 

of this amendment is in the furtherance of the public health, safety, morals, order, comfort, 

convenience, appearance, prosperity, or general welfare. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. Zoning Map Amended. The Zoning Map is hereby amended for the 

following property from C-2 General Commercial to Institutional: 

Page 15

Item #  2.



Ordinance O-18-2021 

Page 2 of 6 

 

 

 

Tax Parcel ID# 38-06-26-017656-000-00 and 38-06-26-017659-000-00, in accordance with the 

legal description found in Exhibit “A”, survey found in Exhibit “B”, and map found in Exhibit “C” 

attached hereto. 

 

 Section 2. Ordinance to be Construed Liberally.  This ordinance shall be liberally 

construed in order to effectively carry out the purposes hereof which are deemed to be in the best 

interest of the public health, safety and welfare of the citizens and residents of Green Cove Springs, 

Florida. 

 

 Section 3. Repealing Clause.  All ordinance or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith 

are, to the extent of the conflict, hereby repealed. 

 

 Section 4. Severability.  It is the declared intent of the City Council of the City of 

Green Cove Springs that, if any section, sentence, clause, phrase, or provision of this ordinance is 

for any reason held or declared to be unconstitutional, void, or inoperative by any court or agency 

of competent jurisdiction, such holding of invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the 

remaining provisions of this ordinance, and the remainder of the ordinance after the exclusions of 

such part or parts shall be deemed to be valid. 

 

 Section 5. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon passage. 
 

 INTRODUCED AND APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY ON THE FIRST 

READING BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, 

FLORIDA, ON THIS 5th DAY OF OCTOBER 2021. 
 

      CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
 

 

 

              

      Edward R. Gaw, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 

 

 

       

Erin West, City Clerk 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 16

Item #  2.



Ordinance O-18-2021 

Page 3 of 6 

 

 

PASSED ON SECOND AND FINAL READING BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA, THIS 19th DAY OF OCTOBER 2021. 
 

      CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
 

 

 

              

      Edward R. Gaw, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 

 

 

       

Erin West, City Clerk 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

 

       

L. J. Arnold, III, City Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 17

Item #  2.



Ordinance O-18-2021 

Page 4 of 6 

 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

Tax Parcel Numbers 38-06-26-017656-000-00 & 38-06-26-017659-000-00 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
Lot 6, and the south 1/2 of Lot 8, Block 21, North Suburbs of Green Cove Springs, according to the plat 
thereof as recorded in Plat Book 2, Page 1, of the Public Records of Clay County, Florida. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 18

Item #  2.



Ordinance O-18-2021 

Page 5 of 6 

 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 

 

Page 19

Item #  2.



Ordinance O-18-2021 

Page 6 of 6 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT “C” 

 

 

Page 20

Item #  2.



ORDINANCE NO. O-17-2021 
 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREEN COVE 

SPRINGS, FLORIDA AMENDING THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP 

FOR ±0.433 ACRES OF PROPERTY LOCATED AT 518 N PINE AVE, 

IDENTIFIED AS TAX ID NUMBERS 017656-000-00 AND 017659-000-

00, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY EXHIBIT “A”, FROM 

COMMERCIAL HIGH INTENSITY TO INSTITUTIONAL; 

PROVIDING FOR REPEALER, SEVERABILITY AND SETTING AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, an application for a small-scale comprehensive plan amendment, as 

described below, to the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map has been filed with the City; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, a duly advertised public hearing was conducted on the proposed amendment 

on September 28, 2021 by the Planning and Zoning Board, sitting as the Local Planning Agency 

(LPA) and the LPA reviewed and considered comments received during the public hearing 

concerning the application and made its recommendation for approval to the City Council; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council considered the recommendations of the LPA at a duly 

advertised public hearing on October 5, 2021 and October 19, 2021 and provided for and received 

public participation; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined and found said application for the 

amendment, to be consistent with the City of Green Cove Springs Comprehensive Plan and Land 

Development Regulations; and, 

 

WHEREAS, for reasons set forth in this Ordinance that is hereby adopted and incorporated 

as findings of fact, that the Green Cove Springs City Council finds and declares that the enactment 

of this amendment is in the furtherance of the public health, safety, morals, order, comfort, 

convenience, appearance, prosperity, or general welfare. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREEN 

COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law.  

1. The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated herein by reference. 

2.  The proposed Future Land Use Map amendment is consistent with the 

Comprehensive Plan. 

Page 21

Item #  2.



Ordinance No. O-17-2021 

Page 2 of 6 

 

 

3.  The amendment will not cause a reduction in the adopted level of service standards 

for transportation, potable water, sanitary sewer, solid waste, stormwater, recreation, 

or public schools. 

 

Section 2. Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map Amended.  The 

Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map is hereby amended from Commercial High Intensity 

to Institutional on Tax Parcel Numbers 38-06-26-017656-000-00 and 38-06-26-017659-000-00 in 

accordance with the legal description found in Exhibit “A”, survey found in Exhibit “B” and map 

found in Exhibit “C” attached hereto. 

 

 Section 3. Ordinance to be Construed Liberally.  This ordinance shall be liberally 

construed in order to effectively carry out the purposes hereof which are deemed to be in the best 

interest of the public health, safety and welfare of the citizens and residents of Green Cove Springs, 

Florida. 

 

 Section 4. Repealing Clause.  All ordinance or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith 

are, to the extent of the conflict, hereby repealed. 

 

 Section 5. Severability.  It is the declared intent of the City Council of the City of 

Green Cove Springs that, if any section, sentence, clause, phrase, or provision of this ordinance is 

for any reason held or declared to be unconstitutional, void, or inoperative by any court or agency 

of competent jurisdiction, such holding of invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the 

remaining provisions of this ordinance, and the remainder of the ordinance after the exclusions of 

such part or parts shall be deemed to be valid. 

 

 Section 6. Effective Date.  The effective date of this plan amendment, if the 

amendment is not timely challenged, shall be 31 days after the state land planning agency notifies 

the City that the plan amendment package is complete in accordance with Chapter 163.3184 F.S. 

If timely challenged, this amendment shall become effective on the date the state land planning 

agency or the Administrative Council enters a final order determining this adopted amendment to 

be in compliance in accordance with Chapter 163.3184 F.S. No development orders, development 

permits, or land uses dependent on this amendment may be issued or commenced before this plan 

amendment has become effective. 

 

  

Page 22

Item #  2.



Ordinance No. O-17-2021 

Page 3 of 6 

 

 

 INTRODUCED AND APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY ON THE FIRST 

READING BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, 

FLORIDA, ON THIS 5th DAY OF OCTOBER 2021. 

 

      CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

 

 

 

              

      Edward R. Gaw, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

       

Erin West, City Clerk 

 

 PASSED ON SECOND AND FINAL READING BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA, THIS 19th DAY OF OCTOBER 2021. 

 

      CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

 

 

 

              

      Edward R. Gaw, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

       

Erin West, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

       

L. J. Arnold, III, City Attorney 

Page 23

Item #  2.



Ordinance No. O-17-2021 

Page 4 of 6 

 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

Tax Parcel Numbers 38-06-26-017656-000-00 & 38-06-26-017659-000-00 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 

Lot 6, and the south 1/2 of Lot 8, Block 21, North Suburbs of Green Cove Springs, according to the plat 

thereof as recorded in Plat Book 2, Page 1, of the Public Records of Clay County, Florida. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 24

Item #  2.



Ordinance No. O-17-2021 

Page 5 of 6 

 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 

 

Page 25

Item #  2.



Ordinance No. O-17-2021 

Page 6 of 6 

 

 

EXHIBIT “C” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 26

Item #  2.



Page 27

Item #  2.



Page 28

Item #  2.



Page 29

Item #  2.



Page 30

Item #  2.



Page 31

Item #  2.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA  

TO:  Planning and Zoning Commission MEETING DATE: September 28, 

2021 

FROM: Michael Daniels, AICP, Planning & Zoning Director 

SUBJECT: Special Exception Request for the Development an Emergency Shelter on property 

located at 518 N Pine Avenue 
 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

APPLICANT: John Sanders OWNER: The Vineyard 

PROPERTY LOCATION: 518 Pine Avenue 

PARCEL NUMBER: 017636-000-00 & 017639-000-00 

FILE NUMBER: FLUS-21-0004  & ZON-21-0004  

CURRENT ZONING:  C-2, General Commercial* 

FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION 

*A companion application to amend the Future Land 

Use and Zoning to Institution for the subject has been 

filed under separate application. 

 

Commercial High Intensity* 

 

 

 

 

SURROUNDING LAND USE 

NORTH: FLU: Commercial High Intensity 

(CHI) 

Z: C-2 

Use: Single Family Residential 

SOUTH: FLU: CHI 

Z: C-2 

Use: Church 

EAST: 
FLU: Commercial Medium 

Intensity (CMI) 

Z: Gateway Corridor Neighborhood 

(GCN)  

Use: Undeveloped 

WEST: FLU: CHI 

Z: C-2Use: Undeveloped  

  

Page 32

Item #  3.



BACKGROUND 

Existing Property Description 

The property has two dilapidated structures on the property that are currently boarded and in disrepair.  

The site is sparsely wooded with hardwood trees to the east of the property and a palm tree between the 

building and the road.   There is a concrete wall and concrete pavement area on the north side of the 

building and two septic tanks to the rear of the buildings which are no longer in use.   

 

Proposed Development Plan 

The application is proposing to redevelop the site as an Emergency Shelter.  An  Emergency  Shelter is 

defined below: 

a facility providing short-term housing not to exceed 90 consecutive days per 

person within a year, for one or more individuals who are otherwise homeless. 

Facility will be prohibited from housing individuals convicted of violent crimes. 

Ancillary activities may include:  

• Onsite counseling services;  

• Onsite career and life skills training;  

• Onsite benefits application assistance (social security, food stamps, Medicare 

etc.).  

The applicant is proposing to rehabilitate the existing 4,260 square feet northern building to provide for: 

 8 transitional housing units and accessory uses 

 Counseling service offices  

 Outside tables for gathering will be provided on the north side of the building. 

13 parking spaces shall be provided on the southern portion of the lot, in compliance with parking 

requirements of City Code requirements.   

All site development requirements of the City Code shall be complied with including site plan, utility 

connections and landscaping pursuant to the City Code requirements.  In addition, the building plans 

shall be permitted with City Code and Florida Building Code requirements.   

The site will be served by the city water, sewer, electric and sanitation services.   

 

Special Exception Review Criteria 

When deciding requests for special exceptions, the planning and zoning board shall make written findings 

that the special exception satisfied the following criteria:  

1) Compliance with all elements of the comprehensive plan.  

The proposed plan is consistent with Future Land Use Objective 1.6.1 (d)): 

“This category consists of civic, cultural, government, religious, utilities, and other public 

necessity uses”   

2) The establishment, maintenance or operation of the special exception will not be detrimental to or 

endanger the public health, safety or general welfare, and is not contrary to established standards, 

regulations or ordinances of other governmental agencies. 

Page 33

Item #  3.



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

     

 
 

 

Sec.  117-796  of  the  City  Code  was  adopted  in  order  to  ensure  that Emergency  Shelters  are 
operated  to  require  that  they  do  not  endange  the  general  welfare  and  particularly  of  the 
surrounding areas. The following requirements will be met regarding the development:

 All  structures  shall  meet  the  city  building  code  requirements,  life  safety  code  requirements,  and

  housing code requirements pertaining to the intended use.

 No emergency shelter shall be located within 1,000 feet of any other emergency shelter. The distance

  requirements between two emergency shelters shall be measured from property line to property line.

 John  Sanders  has  been  named  the  responsible  party  for  the  development  and  he  is

  responsible for the following:

respond  to  routine  inspections,  non-routine  complaints,  and  other  more  immediate 
problems related to the emergency shelter of the property.

 Be available at a listed phone number 24 hours a day, seven days a week and capable

  of legally handling any issues arising from the emergency shelter use;

 Ensure all tenants have undergone a police background check. Individuals found guilty

  of violent crimes are prohibited from being tenants in an emergency shelter regardless

  of the length of stay. Failure to comply with this requirement shall result in revocation

  of the business tax receipt;

 Ensuring sexual offenders/predators as defined in F.S. §§ 775.21, 943.0435, 944.607,

  or 985.4815 register at the Clay County Sheriff's Office and the Green Cove Springs

  Police Department, following the process set forth in F.S. § 775.21, 48 hours prior to

  arrival at an emergency shelter, regardless of the length of stay. The property owner

  or agent shall comply with F.S. § 775.215, as amended from time to time, pertaining

  to the distance separation of homes with a sexual offender/predator residing within the

  emergency shelter and any business, school, child care facility, park, playground, or

  other  places  where  children  regularly  congregate.  Failure  to  comply  with  this

  requirement shall result in revocation of the business tax receipt.

3) Each structure or improvement is so designed and constructed that it is not unsightly, undesirable 
or  obnoxious  in  appearance  to  the  extent  that  it  will  hinder  the  orderly  and  harmonious 
development of the city and the zoning district in which it is proposed.

Approving  the  development  will  allow  for  the rehabilitation  of  two  declining  structures.   Both 
structures  shall  be  required  to  meet  the  Florida  Building  Code  Standards  and  City  Site 
Development Regulations.

4) The special exception will not adversely impact the permitted uses in the zoning district nor unduly 
restrict  the  enjoyment  of  other  property  in  the  immediate  vicinity  nor  substantially  diminish  or 
impair property values within the area.

Pursuant to the regulations set forth in Sec. 117-796 and the proposed conditions placed on the 
application, the proposed development will be consistent with the existing neighborhood and will 
not negatively impact the area.

5) The  establishment  of  the  special  exception  will  not  impede  the  orderly  development  and 
improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the zoning district.

The proposed development will not impact the improvement of surrounding properties

6) Adequate water supply and sewage disposal facilities will be provided in accordance with state 
and county health departments.

Water and sewer are available

7) Adequate  access  roads,  onsite  parking,  onsite  loading  and  unloading  berths,  and  drainage  have 
been or will be provided where required.

Access shall be provided off of Pine Avenue and a driveway will need to be constructed with the 
building permit.

Page 34

Item #  3.



8) Adequate measures have been taken to provide ingress and egress to the property, which is 

designed in a manner to minimize traffic congestion on local roads.  

Access shall be provided off of Pine Avenue.  Additional traffic will be less than 10 peak hour trips.   

9) Adequate screening and buffering of the special exception will be provided, if needed. 

Screening is not required due to similar uses, however landscaping, including a canopy tree in the 

front yard on both units and proposed plantings shall be provided.  

10) The special exception will not require signs or exterior lighting which will cause glare, adversely 

impact area traffic safety or have a negative economic effect on the area. Any signs or exterior 

lighting required by the special exception shall be compatible with development in the zoning 

district.  

Exterior lighting, signage will not be included in the proposed development. 

11) The special exception will conform to all applicable regulations of the zoning district in which it 

is proposed and all of the regulations set forth in Sec. 117-796.   

Traffic Impact 

Land Use1 
Units 

Daily AM Peak PM Peak 

(ITE) Rate Trips Rate Trips Rate Trips 

Proposed 

General Office (ITE 230) 
 

Congregate Care Facility 
(ITE 254) 

0.8 
 
 
8 

11.01 
 
 

2.15 

3 
 
 

17 

1.49 
 
 

0.06 

1 
 
 

1 

1.49 
 
 

0.17 

1 
 
 

1 

   20  2  2 

1. Source: Institute of Transportation Engineers: Trip Generation Manual 8th Edition 

 

Attachments include: 

1. Geometry Plan 

2. Draft Building Plan 

3. Section 117-796 of the City Code Regarding Emergency Shelter Requirements 

4. Special Exception Application 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

  

 
  

 
     

   

    

  

 

 

 

 

Staff recommends approval of SE21-001, to permit a Special Exception for an Emergency Shelter as 
defined by Section 101-5 and regulated by Sec. 117-796 subject to the following conditions:

1. Approval  of  the  Special  Exception  is  limited  to  the  applicant  /  owner:   John  Sanders/The 
Vineyard.  Any transfer of ownership will require a new Special Exception application.

2. The responsible party contact information shall be posted at a visible location in the front 

interior of both  buildings.

3. The maximum number of transitional housing units shall be limited to 8 units.

4. All outdoor activities shall be limited to no later than 8:00 pm.

5. Approval of the Special Exception is contingent upon the approval of the Future Land Use and 
Zoning Amendments by City Council.

Motion: To approve SE 21-001, to permit a Special Exception for an Emergency Shelter at 518 N Pine 
Avenue subject to the conditions provided in the Staff Report.

Page 35

Item #  3.



TO
CO

I En
gi

ne
er

in
g,

 L
LC

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
G

R
EE

N
 C

O
VE

 S
PR

IN
G

S

VI
N

EY
AR

D
 T

R
AN

SI
TI

O
N

AL
 C

EN
TE

R
FO

R

5

G
EO

M
ET

R
Y 

PL
AN

Page 36

Item #  3.



Page 37

Item #  3.



Page 38

Item #  3.



Page 39

Item #  3.



 

 

 

 

 

 

The Vineyard Transitional Center 

Clay County                            

 

 

 
Mission: The Vineyard serves to exist as a haven for 

individuals who seek to rebuild their lives, through the provision 
of essential programs which foster self-sufficiency, by sharing 
the love and compassion through our Lord Jesus Christ.   

 Deuteronomy 15:7-8 “If there is any among you who a 
poor man of your brethren, within any of the gates in your land 
which  the Lord your God is giving you, you shall not harden 
your heart, nor shut your hand from your poor brother, 8 but 
you shall open your hand wide to him and willingly lend him 
sufficient for his need, whatever he needs.” 

 

Page 40

Item #  3.



Location 
 518 Pine Avenue, Green Cove Springs, Fl. 

 

Purpose 

• Multi-agency community for families and individuals facing housing 
and economic crises.   

• Opportunity for churches to provide meals and engage homeless 
people in community and with services   

• The first housing resource in Clay County Florida- taking leadership 
role to partner with churches 

• Providing palpable tenacities which foster community partnerships 
and church involvement  
  

History 
 John Sanders had a vision to begin a haven for individuals in Clay 
County the opportunity to regain self-sufficiency through the provision 
of workforce solutions, partnering with local businesses to help 
individuals to become gainfully employed and through the provision of 
offering housing and food to anyone in need that resides in Clay county. 
Through his community outreaches, and networking activities John met 
Amy Houston, Joseph Smith, Rebecca Vanderwater, Rhonda Ali, and Kris 
Kessler and what would become the team of The Vineyard Transitional 
Center. The Vineyard has been operating in the interest of the 
community members by providing clothes, purchasing hotel nights for 
families and individuals at The Green Cove Springs Motel, In Town 
Suites, and the Motel 6, as well as referral services to Mercy Support 
services, and local food bank agencies . 

 We have helped individuals obtain employment, and obtain self-
sufficiency through counseling efforts, driving individuals to doctors 

Page 41

Item #  3.



appointments, food banks, and waiting in the car while they apply and 
interview for jobs. We believe it is through the love and helping to meet 
someone’s basic needs, that we can encourage when someone is 
discouraged. By sharing the love of Christ, they may see a hope and a 
future for themselves. 

Additionally, we have had the wonderful opportunity to partner 
with one of Clay counties school social workers Rebecca Owens and 
providing shoes to Charles E Bennet Elementary. In August of 2018 
through the donation of the Cancer Institute of Jacksonville, we had 
the opportunity to have a back to school drive to the community of 
Penny Farms children. Many of our Saturdays have been filled with 
passing out lunches, backpacks and clothes to Clay county homeless, 
who we found through what we call “Backpack Outreaches”.  Last 
year, we partnered with Orange Park Methodist church, and St Johns 
River Community College to provide blood pressure checks, and 
survival kits.  

 As you can see, it is our desire to help those members of our 
community who may need a little love, and care.  

 

 

• 2014 beginning with Truly Divine Treasures, a Clothes closet 
operating as an Outreach through True Vine Fellowship Church, 
where John Sanders was the pastor. John has worked diligently, and 
tirelessly, developing community relationships with agencies in 
both Clay County and Duval County. Those who know him, know his 
love for God, and the members of his hometown of Green Cove 
Springs, Florida and surrounding counties of Clay to include, Orange 
Park, Fleming Island, and Middleburg.  

 

Page 42

Item #  3.



Mission Statement 

 
 The Vineyard Transitional Center seeks to build community and self-

sufficiency through mentoring relationships. The power of mentoring is 
that it creates a one-of-a-kind opportunity for community, goal 
achievement and problem-solving.  

(As stated by Ruby K. Payne, author of A Framework for Understanding Poverty)  “When 
students who have been in poverty (and have successfully made it into middle class) are asked 
how they made the journey, the answer nine time out of 10 has to do with a relationship—a 
teacher, counselor, or coach who made a suggestion or took an interest in them as 
individuals…For students and adults who move from poverty, the primary motivation for their 
success will be in their relationships.”     
 

On-site Services  
  

 Providing housing solutions for up to 16 individuals (families 
families) who have an economic loss ie; job loss, disaster victims 

 Counseling services either through on-site staff or contractual 
services 

 Partnering with local agencies ie; Clay Behavioral, local churches, 
and local food banks 

 Public computer use; offering those who need internet, printer, to 
seek employment, conduct homework, apply for benefits (social 
security, food stamps, Medicare, social security card).  

 Clothes Closet 
 Providing meals to the community 4 times a month  
 Lease & rent out office ie; Penny Farms 
 Career source HUB 

  
 

  
Truly Divine Treasures Clothes Closet 

Page 43

Item #  3.



 Hours of Operation: 
 Monday, Wednesday Saturday from 9am -12:00 (operating 3 days 

a week) 
 Providing community service hours opportunities to individuals in 

our community ie; Clay High school students. 
 We want to adopt 2 local nursing homes: Governors Creek; 

providing gowns, socks 
 Accepting referrals from local agencies 
 Measurements of the building _____________x_____________ 

length = SF 
 

Large Building 
 The large structure will serve as 4 Studios – House up to 16 people 

(families) 
 No smoking facility 
 Block Wall Outside Smoke lounge 
 Security cameras and alarm system 
 Fire Extinguisher 
 Building will be brought to City Code Enforcement standards 
 Food permit 
 Sprinkler system 
 Day term of occupancy to any residents 
 Will sign a waiver of liability – Intake form 
 Hotel Sponsor (to provide furniture for our facility) we will name one 

room in their honor 
 Seeking a grant writer to help establish funding sources  
 Allowing us the opportunity to give back to Clay County 

 
Phase 1 Project 

Resource Center and Hours of Operation 

Page 44

Item #  3.



 

 

 

 

 
 

  

 

Monday -Thursday 8am-4:00p.m.
 Will be the space for mental, nutritional and life skills, family,

  counseling services
 Partnering with Mercy Support Services, Clay Behavioral, churches

  and other local agencies
 Resource Center for individuals who need assistance with applying

  for social security cards, benefits, food stamps, and Medicare
 Will provide tutoring services for at risk youths and young adult in

  the community
 Career source HUB

Outreach and Community Efforts
  We have strived to increase community awareness through conducting 

weekly, monthly, and annual events. The Vineyard has received 
tremendous support from local business as well as personal donors. 
Below is a list of some of our partners.

Page 45

Item #  3.



    

 

 

Clay County Council on Aging 

Benefactors- Peter and Constance 

PayPal monthly donors 

Buffalo Wild Wings 

LDI Reprographics 

Texas Roadhouse 

Red Lobster 

Pancake Breakfast – Dees Bar and 
Grill 

The Lunchbox Deli 

Tropical Smoothie Fleming Island 

Weekly Car Washes 

G’s BBQ 

Sonny’s BBQ 

Big Dawgs 

Soul Food Festival 

Annual Silent Auction 2017 and 
2018 

Annual Kickball Tournament 2018 
and    2019 
 

 

   

Page 46

Item #  3.



 
 

Many homeless individuals are disconnected from healthy friendship 
and the encouragement of community. The Vineyard Transitional 
Center seeks to build community and self-sufficiency through mentoring 
relationships. The power of mentoring is that it creates a one-of-a-kind 
opportunity for community, goal achievement and problem-solving.  
As stated by (Ruby K. Payne, author of A Framework for Understanding 
Poverty) “When students who have been in poverty (and have 
successfully made it into middle class) are asked how they made the 
journey, the answer nine time out of 10 has to do with a relationship—a 
teacher, counselor, or coach who made a suggestion or took an interest 
in them as individuals…For students and adults who move from poverty, 
the primary motivation for their success will be in their relationships.”   
 
www.claycountyhomelessshelter.com 
https://www.facebook.com/settings?ref=mb&drop 
mailto:claycountyhomelessshelter@gmail.com?__xts__= 
  
 
 
 
  

  
 

Page 47

Item #  3.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  Planning & Zoning Commission MEETING DATE: September 28, 2021 

FROM: Michael Daniels, AICP, Planning & Zoning Director 

SUBJECT: Potential Development Moratorium Discussion 
 

BACKGROUND 

Pursuant to the discussion at the Joint Planning Commission / City Council Meeting on Thursday, August 

26th, Council and Planning Commissioners expressed concerns regarding existing uses that are currently 

allowed predominantly in the Central Business District.   

As a result, staff was directed to research temporary development moratoriums for discussion purposes.  

Staff prepared research to take before City Council on September 21, 2021 for further direction. City 

Council voted 4-1 in favor of presenting the research to the Planning & Zoning Commission. 

Staff has provided examples of development moratoriums from the City of Edgewood and Hillsborough 

County for Council review.  Staff has also provided the current allowed use chart within the Central 

Business District and Gateway Corridor Districts identifying permitted uses and special exceptions that 

could be considered for temporary prohibition while the city is in the process of updating the 

Comprehensive Plan and Downtown Master Plan.      

FISCAL IMPACT 

Potential for a temporary loss of development fees and ad valorem revenue.   

RECOMMENDATION 

This item is for discussion purposes only.  Staff is requesting further direction on this issue.  
 

Page 48

Item #  4.



Page 49

Item #  4.



Page 50

Item #  4.



Page 51

Item #  4.



Page 52

Item #  4.



Page 53

Item #  4.



Page 54

Item #  4.



Page 55

Item #  4.



Page 56

Item #  4.



Page 57

Item #  4.



Page 58

Item #  4.



Permitted Use Matrix for the Central Business and Gateway Corridor Commercial District

Permitted Uses:  Table  P= Permitted Use; SE = Special Exception

Use Category Use Type CBD (Central 

Busines District 

Gateway Corridor 

Commercial 

Residential 

Operation
Home Occupation

1 P

Mobile Home Park

Multifamily Dwelling P
23

Single-family Dwelling, 

Detached

P P

Single-family Dwelling, 

Attached

P P
2

Two-family dwelling

Antiques P P

Appliance Sales and 

Rentals

P P

Art Supplies P P

Automobile Parts SE

Bait and Tackle

Bakery P P

Bicycle Sales and 

Service

P P

Billiards P P

Book / Stationery Store P P

Bowling Alley

Building Supplies and 

Materials

Cabinet Shops

Cameras and 

Photographic Supplies

P P

Carpet Outlets

Cermic Sales and 

Studios

P P

Cigar and Smoke 

Shops

P P

Clock Shops P P

Clothing Shops P P

Commercial Retial 

Packaging and Mail

P P

Convenience Stores 

(no gas pumps)

P P

Convenience Stores 

(with gas pumps)

SE

Curio Shops P P

Decorating Studio / 

Shop

P P

Delicatessen

Department Store P P

RESIDENTIAL USES

Residential Type

RETAIL USES

General Retail

Page 59

Item #  4.



Permitted Use Matrix for the Central Business and Gateway Corridor Commercial District

Permitted Uses:  Table  P= Permitted Use; SE = Special Exception

Use Category Use Type CBD (Central 

Busines District 

Gateway Corridor 

Commercial 

Drapery Shops P P

Drug Sales (including 

medial marijuana 

treatment center 

dispensing facilities)

P P

Electrical Shops

Florist P P

Food Outlet Store P

Fruit and Vegetables 

Sales (retail, no 

packing)

P

Furniture Store P P

Game Room P P

Gift Shop P P

Grocery Store P P

Gun Sales and Repair P P

Hardware Store P P

Heating and Air 

Conditioning Sales and 

Service

Hobby and Craft P P

Interior Decorating P P

Janitorial Supplies

Jewelry Store P P

Leather Goods and 

Luggage

P P

Locksmiths P P

Meat Markets P

Medical Supplies P P

Mobile Home Sales 

and Service 

Motorcycle Sales and 

Service

Music Store

Newsstands P P

Nurseries

Office and/or Business 

Machines

P P

Office and/or Business 

Supplies

P P

Optical Shops P P

Opticians P P

Outdoor Sales SE

Paint / Wallpaper P P

Pawn Shops P P

Pet Grooming P P

Pet Shops P

Pool Supplies

Printing Shops P P

General Retail

Page 60

Item #  4.



Permitted Use Matrix for the Central Business and Gateway Corridor Commercial District

Permitted Uses:  Table  P= Permitted Use; SE = Special Exception

Use Category Use Type CBD (Central 

Busines District 

Gateway Corridor 

Commercial 

Professional Offices P P

Rentals P
24

Second Hand Retail P

Shoe Repair P P

Shoe Store P P

Shopping Center

Skating Rink P

Sporting Goods Store P P

Sundries and Notions 

Shops

P P

Tailor / Dressmaker P P

Television and Radio 

Sales and Service

P P

Theaters P P

Toy Stores P P

Upholstery Shops

Utility Building Sales

Watch Repair P P

Wearing Apparel 

Shops

P P

Wholesaling from 

Sample Stock

Automobile Sales, 

Service, Repair, and 

Rentals

SE
22

Boat and Motor Sales 

and Service

Tire Sales and Service

Agricultural Use Timber Growing, Tree 

Farming, Nursery, or 

Agricultural Related 

Businesses

Parking Lot P

Parking Garage

Pest Control Service 

Establishments

Radio or TV 

Broadcasting Offices, 

Studios, Transmitters, 

or Antennas

Television and Radio 

Studios (excluding 

transmission 

equipment)

General Retail

Vehicular Sales

SERVICE USES

Business Service

Page 61

Item #  4.



Permitted Use Matrix for the Central Business and Gateway Corridor Commercial District

Permitted Uses:  Table  P= Permitted Use; SE = Special Exception

Use Category Use Type CBD (Central 

Busines District 

Gateway Corridor 

Commercial 

Alcoholic beverages (all 

types, sale and service) 

for on-premises 

consumption

SE SE

Alcoholic beverages  

for off-premises 

consumption

SE

Restaurants (with drive-

through)

P

Restaurants (without 

drive-through)

P P

Art Gallery or Studio P P

Hotel / Motel P P

Museum P P

Building Trade 

Contractors with Fleet 

Parking On-Site

SE

Financial Institutions 

(with drive-through)

P P

Financial Institutions 

(without drive-through)

P P

Office Space for 

Building Trades 

Contractor with No 

Fleet Parking On-Site

P

Professional Offices P P

Barbershops / Beauty 

Shops

P P

Dry Cleaners P P

Funeral Homes P P

Health Spa P P

Laundries / 

Laundromats

P

Licensed Masseurs

Mini-Warehouse

Palmist / Psychic

Well Drilling and Pump 

Services

Adult Day Care

Child Care SE P

Church SE P

Group Care Home

Nursing Home SE

Pre-school P

Private School SE

School, elementary & 

secondary

School, post-secondary

EDUCATION/RECREATION/SOCIAL USES

Eating or 

Drinking 

Establishment

Hospitality and 

Tourism

Office Use

Personal Service

Community 

Service

Educational Use

Page 62

Item #  4.



Permitted Use Matrix for the Central Business and Gateway Corridor Commercial District

Permitted Uses:  Table  P= Permitted Use; SE = Special Exception

Use Category Use Type CBD (Central 

Busines District 

Gateway Corridor 

Commercial 

Vocational, Technical, 

Trade, or Industrial 

School

Adult Arcade / 

Electronic Game 

Center

Athletic Complex

Clubs/Lodges/Fraternal 

Organizations

Country Club

Dance / Music / 

Gymnastics Studio

P P

Go-Cart Track

Golf Course

Race Tracks

Recreational Facility

Public Recreational 

Uses

Bus Passages, Parcel 

Pick-ups and terminals

Governmental Uses P

Public Utilities P

Ancillary Public 

Facilities

P

Convalescence Facility SE

Dental Clinic P P

Emergency Shelter

Hospital SE P

Medical / Dental 

Laboratories

P P

Medical Clinic P P

Nursing Home SE

Veterinarian Clinics P
25 P

Health Care Use

Educational Use

Recreational Use

PUBLIC USES

Public Use

HEALTH CARE USES

Page 63

Item #  4.


